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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT FILED
DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA ) |

ANDERSON DIVISION 00T 31 g0
: FARRY 1. propes CLER
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA U. 5. Districr ¢t

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT
vs.
Criminal Number 8:00-0697
GABRIEL MacENROE
DAVID MORGENSTERN
JOSEPH SILVESTRI

L, the undersigned complainant, being duly sworn, state the following is true and correct to the best of my
knowledge and belief.

On or about February 2000 through October 30, 2000, in Anderson County, in the District of South Carolina,
the defendant(s) did, having devised or intending to devise any scheme or artifice to defraud, or for obtaining money
or property by means of false or fraudulent pretenses, representations, or promises, conspire to transmit or cause
to be transmitted by means of wire, radio, or television communication in interstate or foreign commerce, any
writings, signs, signals, pictures, or sounds for the purpose of executing such scheme or artifice, in violation of Title
18, United States Code, Section 371.

I further state that I am a Special Agent, Federal Bureau of Investigation, and that this complaint is based
on the following facts:

See attached affidavit.

Continued on the attached sheet and made a part hereof: ® Yes O No

B o Towr

Paul A. Jacobs, Special Agent, FBI

Sworn to and subscribed in my presence on October 31, 2000, at Greenville, South Carolina.

William M. Catoe
United States Magistrate Judge M m

Signature of Judicial Officer
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT OF SOUTH CAROLINA
GREENVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA

AFFIDAVIT

I, Paui A. Jacobs, a Special Agent of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI), being duly sworn, depose and state:

I have been a Special Agent for 17 years. Ijam currently
assigned to the Columbia Division of the FBI, Greenville, South
Carolina Resident Agency. My duties and responsibilities involve
the investigation of violation of certain federal statutes,
including violations concerning Mail Fraud, Fraud by Wire, Money
Laundering and Conspiracy. During my employment with the FBI, I
have been assigned cases and have assisted other Special Agents
with investigations involving these violations. I have directed
and participated in numerous investigations, interviews, arrests,
and search warrants involving these violations and related
activities. The following facts are within my personal knowledge

and/or have been related to me by other agents of the FBI.

SUMMARY OF THE VIOLATIONS

This affidavit is submitted in support of complaints and
arrest warrants for Gabriel MacEnroe, David Morgenstern and
Joseph Silvestri. Your affiant has reason to believe that
Gabriel MacEnroe, residing in St. Gallen, Switzerland (herein
referred to as MacEnroe), David Morgenstern, residing in London,
England (herein referred to as Morgenstern), Joseph Silvestri,

residing in Florida, (herein referred to as Silvestri) and other
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known but unnamed coconspirators (herein referred to individually
as FM and H) have conspired to defraud a Cooperating Witness
residing in Columbus, Ohio (herein referred to as CW) and an
Undercover Special Agent of the FBI (herein referred to as UCSA)
in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371
(Conspiracy) and Section 1343 (Fraud by Wire).

Prior to his arrest on January 7, 2000, Virgil Womack
(herein referred to as Womack) of Seneca, South Carolina managed
a business based in Seneca which marketed fraudulent
"guaranteed" investment opportunities to individual investors.
The fraudulent guaranteed investments were marketed by Womack
under the name "Chemical Trust" and other fictitious names
through Womack's network of salesmen nationwide (one of whom was
CW), and were "guaranteed" by a bogus corporation known as "U.S.
Guarantee." Womack's fraud scheme resulted in approximately 1300
investors investing approximately 61 million dollars in the
investment scheme. The Grand Jury for the District of South
Carolina returned an indictment against Womack and others with
respect to the scheme on charges of conspiracy, mail and wire

fraud and money laundering in the matter of_United States v.

Virgil Womack, et al, in the District of South Carolina, Anderson
Division, and Womack is currently awaiting trial.

From February 2000 through October 2000, CW personally met
with MacEnroe, Morgenstern, Silvestri and the other
coconspirators and received numerous interstate telephone calls

and interstate facsimile transmissions from them in furtherance







